
                                  

AGENDA

For a meeting of the
CULTURE AND VISITOR ECONOMY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE
to be held on

THURSDAY, 15 NOVEMBER 2018
at

7.00 PM
In the

RIVER ROOM, JUBILEE CHURCH LIFE CENTRE, 5 LONDON ROAD, 
GRANTHAM, NG31 6EY

Aidan Rave, Chief Executive    

Chairman
Councillor Linda Wootten

Councillor Bob Adams (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Rachael Cooke
Councillor Tracey Forman

Councillor Judy Stevens
Councillor David Taylor
Councillor Paul Wood

Invited Cabinet Members
Councillor Matthew Lee, Leader of the Council 
Councillor Nick Robins, Cabinet Member for Retail and Visitor Economy 

Support Officer: Lucy Bonshor Tel: 01476 40 61 20
E-mail: l.bonshor@southkesteven.gov.uk 

Members of the Committee are invited to attend the above meeting to consider 
the items of business listed below.

1  COMMENTS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 

To receive comments or views from members of the public at the Committee’s 
discretion.

2  MEMBERSHIP 

The Committee to be notified of any substitute members.

3  APOLOGIES 

4  DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS 

Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting.

mailto:l.bonshor@southkesteven.gov.uk


5  ACTION NOTES FROM THE MEETING HELD ON 13 SEPTEMBER 2018 
(Pages 3 - 8)

6  UPDATES FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

7  PROPOSED DELIVERY PLAN FOR CULTURE & ARTS ACTIVITY TO THE END 
OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND AN OUTLINE OF PROPOSALS FOR 2019-20 

Presentation by Chief Executive Officer InvestSK.

8  PROPOSED DELIVERY PLAN FOR HERITAGE ACTIVITY FOR 2018-19 AND AN 
OUTLINE OF PROPOSALS FOR 2019-20 

Presentation by Chief Executive Officer InvestSK.

9  VISITOR ECONOMY 

Update to be given by the Head of Visitor Economy.

10  ANY OTHER BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN, BY REASON OF SPECIAL 
CIRCUMSTANCES DECIDES IS URGENT 



MEETING OF THE
CULTURE AND VISITOR 
ECONOMY OVERVIEW 
AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

THURSDAY, 13 SEPTEMBER 2018, 
7.00 PM

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT
Councillor Linda Wootten (Chairman)
Councillor Bob Adams (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Phil Dilks
Councillor Judy Stevens
Councillor David Taylor

CABINET MEMBERS
Councillor Nick Robins, Cabinet Member for Retail and Visitor Economy

OFFICERS
Strategic Lead, InvestSK (Steve Bowyer)
Corporate Operations Lead (Paul Stokes)
Head of Arts (Michael Cross)
Head of Visitor Economy (Andrew Norman)
Civic and Democratic Officer (Anita Eckersley)

58. MEMBERSHIP

The Committee was notified that Councillor Phil Dilks was substituting for 
Councillor Forman for this meeting only.

The Chairman welcomed the Vice Chairman, Councillor Bob Adams to the 
Committee.

59. APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor Tracey Forman, 
Councillor Paul Wood and Councillor Rachael Cooke.

An apology for absence had also been received from Councillor Matthew Lee, 
the Leader of the Council.

Page - 3

Agenda Item 5



60. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

No interests were disclosed.

61. ACTION NOTES FROM THE MEETING HELD ON 10 JULY 2018

Page 6 – First paragraph to read “Further questions were asked about 
engagement and it was reiterated that engagement would be done in its widest 
sense, with both individuals and groups..”

Page 7 – Second full paragraph, final sentence to read, “She felt something 
should be in place to galvanise businesses and encourage more engagement 
and involvement..”.

The action notes from the meeting held on 10 July 2018 were noted, subject to 
the amendments above.

62. UPDATES FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING

The Strategic Lead InvestSK provided a brief overview of the Heritage Live 
Website (www.heritagealive.co.uk). The Website was a landing point for 
visitors.  It included details of heritage attractions and had links to events and 
projects happening in each town within the District.  The website also contained 
links to a volunteer board, news and a blog. It was noted that heritage did not 
just mean buildings and resources.

Reference was made to a recent visit to Bishy Road in York and how, what 
used to be a rundown area, had now been transformed into a visitor attraction.  
Discussion took place on how to engage with local businesses, different ways 
of encouraging footfall within the towns, changes in shopping habits and how 
the retail world on the high street was finding it difficult to adapt. 

Further discussion took place on the innovative ideas developed by some large 
multiples in other areas, whether there was a potential to encourage similar 
schemes locally and how some initiatives such as Bishy Road had transformed 
an area that was now utilised by local visitors and was now a visitor attraction 
for visitors from further afield. 

Discussion ensued on the type of offer each town currently had, what potential 
there was to enhance and transform local features into visitor attractions and 
the differences between the day and night time economy.

In conclusion the Committee welcomed the new website and noted the update.  
A Member queried whether a link for the Deepings Literary Festival could be 
included on the website.

Page - 4

http://www.heritagealive.co.uk/


Action Point: 

Cllr Judy Stevens and the Heritage Officer (Claire Saunders) to discuss 
incorporating the Deepings Literary Festival as an event on the website.

63. ARTS AND CULTURAL STRATEGY

The Head of Arts provided the Committee with a verbal update on the progress   
of the Arts and Cultural Strategy.  He explained that a number of meetings had 
taken place with colleagues from partner organisations as well as with the 
Leader and the Strategic Lead InvestSK. During these discussions 
consideration had been given to the amount of work being undertaken to 
deliver the big events taking place over the coming months and the impact this 
may have on the development of the Strategy. The outcome from these 
discussions had been to defer the public consultation on the Arts and Cultural 
Strategy to early 2019. It was also felt important to continue meeting with 
partner organisations.  Discussion had taken place on the delivery of sport and 
a more considered approach being incorporated into the Strategy.

It was proposed that a wider public engagement would take place in the new 
year.  A questionnaire would also be made available on line. Members would 
be invited to a future series of meetings yet to be arranged.

In response to a Members query about the Strategy being informed by the work 
being undertaken with the arts and cultural organisations, it was noted that the 
outcomes from this work would inform the Strategy and once incorporated the 
Strategy would then be subject to public consultation. The Online questionnaire 
would be available to the public.

Recommendation:

The Cultural and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
recommends to Cabinet that engagement with strategic partners and art 
organisations continues and that the public consultation on the Arts and Culture 
Strategy is deferred to early 2019.

64. GRAVITY FIELDS

The Corporate Operations Lead began his presentation by showing a short 
promotion video for Gravity Fields. The video contained details of the type of 
events that would be taking place during 26 – 30 September 2018.

The opening event “An Evening with Professor Brian Cox and Robin Ince would 
take place on Saturday 22 September at The Meres Leisure Centre in 
Grantham.  This event had already sold out.  

Page - 5



Other events highlighted were:

Space and Sun: Helen Sharman, Professor Lucie Green and Dr Harry Cliff 
would be in attendance for this event.  In 1991, Helen Sharman, CMG OBE 
was the first astronaut and person from Britain to travel in space.  She launched 
the Russian Soyuz spacecraft and spent eight days orbiting earth.

Museum of the Moon: This was a new touring artwork by UK artist, Luke 
Jerram which had recently been on display in Trinity Church in Hull. The 
installation was a fusion of lunar imagery and moonlight with a surrounding 
sound composition created by award winning composer Dan Jones.

Gorilla Circus: A world class aerial show that would take place in the ‘port’ area 
of the Market Place using high rigging. Gorilla Circus would be exploring the 
relationship with height, fear, freedom and adrenaline using a kinetic structure.

An evening of outdoor spectacles:  A celebration of the 250th anniversary of the 
voyage of HMS Endeavour to the South Pacific with Captain Cook and Sir 
Joseph Banks who was a botanist born in Lincolnshire.

Pips in Space: A celebration of the pips taken from Newton’s apple tree by Tim 
Peake that he took with him when he travelled into space.  The pips developed 
into young seedlings on their return to earth and were now kept at Kew 
Gardens.

A Rear View: A bus with a rear view that would look at a ‘one of a kind’ journey 
in four locations.

Science Bites: After hours: Evening tours and small ‘science bites’ at 
Woolsthorpe Manor House.

The Hogwallops:  Thrilling spectacular circus skills, physical comedy, clowning, 
juggling, theatrical storytelling and slapstick dramatisation of the domestic 
adventures of a chaotic, dysfunctional family of misfits. 

The Science Museum: Exploring what it was like to be an astronaut.  

The finale would be a firework display on St Peter’s Hill outside the Guildhall 
and Civic Offices.  

The Committee was informed of a quote from Festival Patron Professor Val 
Gibson, Head of the High Energy Physics at the University of Cambridge: 
“Gravity Fields Festival is head and shoulders above any other arts and science 
festival in the UK, particularly because it involves so much of the community”

A further presentation was provided on the role of the Corporate Operations 
Team and the work undertaken to deliver such a large event.  The team 

Page - 6



covered infrastructure and logistics such as; Road closures, security, 
communications, first aid, fairground/rides, market stalls, the recruitment of staff 
stewards and external stewards.

Stewards would be the point of contact, provide information for the public and 
would need to be able to answer a variety of questions such as, what time a 
particular event might be on, where they could eat, where toilets were, and 
even, what time Isaac Newton was on!!  The stewards would also be identifying 
areas of crowd build up, highlighting any crowd or security concerns with the 
control room and required to deal with lost children/dogs and adults.

The Committee was provided with the following statistics: around 1800 leaflets 
had been distributed to residents and businesses regarding road closures; 148 
bags of waste had been collected by the recycling team after the 2016 
Saturday finale; during the 2016 festival 620m of crowd barriers and 170m of 
Heras fencing was used.  The number of volunteer hours managing events in 
2014 was 485 hours, which increased in 2016 to 672 hours and was expected 
to increase to around 1000 hours for this year’s event. The firework finale 
display was expected to last around 8 minutes.  Gravity Fields 2018 was now 
recruiting volunteers. 

In addition, the Committee was informed that 26 schools had been engaged 
with this year which included all the secondary schools in Grantham; Gravity 
Fields was a national event and press coverage had been undertaken.  There 
had also been a spread in the Telegraph nationally.  BBC East Midlands had 
expressed an interest in attending and filming during the event.  The economic 
benefits for the District during 2016 had been around £850,000 but this year it 
was expected to be around £1m.

The Committee was then invited to discuss and provide their views on future 
provision of events within the District and the following areas were discussed:

The types of events that could potentially take place in some of the other towns 
in the District, (Stamford was unique in that it hosted both the Georgian Festival  
and the Burghley Horse Trials, and was an architectural visitor hot spot in its’ 
own right).  Bourne had a history of fashion arising from it being the birth place 
of Charles Worth who created haute couture. A Charles Worth Gallery had 
been established in the town.  Bourne was also synonymous with racing cars.  
There was also the Literary Festival that took place in Market Deeping.  
Members queried whether, having large events in the other towns within the 
District might impact on prestige of Gravity Fields and the Georgian Festival.

The Head of Arts, Michael Cross, commented that work was being undertaken 
with the Member from Deeping St James in respect of the Literary Festival.  
The InvestSK Lead, Steve Bowyer noted that work was ongoing to engage with 
businesses throughout the District in respect of the looking at District wide 
ambitions.  Each town and area had their own specialisms that could be tapped 
into but it was not something that would happen overnight.

Page - 7



Further discussion took place on tickets and whether all events in Festivals 
should be ticketed but it was felt that each festival was different and that not all 
events should be ticketed.  

In response to query about how much it cost to facilitate a festival like Gravity 
Fields and the Committee was informed that the Arts Council provided £89,700, 
(this had not changed since the first application), and SKDC match funded.  
This year the figure to facilitate the festival was £140,000.  In addition, 
sponsorship from other sources was utilised.

During their discussions the Committee considered the wider picture and what 
the picture would be in respect of future trends, the changing times and how 
important it was to maintain a relevance to current issues.  In addition, it was 
acknowledged that staff volunteered their time to help steward these events but 
might not be able to volunteer should a number of other large events be 
arranged that also required stewarding.

The Chairman thanked everyone for their input and the Committee noted the 
update.

65. CLOSE OF MEETING

Meeting closed at 20.50.

Page - 8


	Agenda
	5 Action Notes from the meeting held on 13 September 2018

